

## City of St. Marys Master Plan Steering Committee Meeting Minutes February 9, 2017

## **MPSC** Attendees:

William DeLoughy
Tanya Glazebrook
Eric Landon (Proxy for Steve Howard)
Kenneth Lyons
Fred Mercier
Elaine Powierski
Jon Preble
Michael Rich
Lee Walker

- 1. The meeting was called to order at 6:03 pm, a quorum was present.
- 2. A motion to approve the minutes from the January 4, 2017<sup>t</sup> meeting was made, seconded, and unanimously approved.
- 3. Courtney Reich introduced Teresa Concannon of the Department of Community Affairs of the State of Georgia who discussed a DCA program called the Georgia Initiative for Community Housing. It's a statewide program where five communities (city or county) are selected to participate each year for a three-year term. The purpose of the GICH is to have communities receive information about resources that can be used for community improvement as well as for the participants to attend retreats where they learn about current developments in community programs and exchange information about programs that the participants might be working on. Information about grants or programs is also provided by DCA. If a community wants to participate, the community has to obtain the application in June to complete and submit by September. The DCA review committee will conduct a visit as part of the application process and it's important that the community have a committee that is focused on why it wants the community to participate as part of that visitation process. Teresa answered a few questions and was thanked for her willingness to visit with the committee and explain the opportunity that the GICH presented. Although no vote was necessary, the committee, as a whole, felt that participation in the program was worthwhile and that the city should consider applying for the program.
- 4. Mike Rich noted that the vision statement had been circulated by email and that a majority of those responding had preferred proposed vision statement nine as the final choice. Upon motion made, seconded and unanimously passed, the following statement was adopted as the city's vision statement for the master plan:

## One St. Marys. One Vision. One Future.

We are a vibrant and friendly coastal community where our residents play an essential role in our success;

We cherish our environment, heritage and role as the Gateway to Cumberland Island National Park:

We proudly support our nation's security by maintaining a strong relationship with the military forces who are our neighbors;

We strive to create a diverse economy and a community with safe neighborhoods, job opportunities, quality education, and access to vital services for all residents;

We envision a city of the future where individuals, families and businesses can thrive while preserving our environment and small town values.

## We are One St Marys.

- 5. Courtney noted that she was looking for the mission statement to be finalized around the end of March. There was some discussion about whether the City Council would be the entity to decide on the mission statement or whether a mission statement should be suggested by the committee. After some pro and con discussion, the consensus of the committee was that the committee should draft the mission statement because of the unique knowledge the committee had as a result of its public outreach. Members were advised to submit their proposed mission statement to Jeff Adams by February 17<sup>th</sup>. Jeff would then circulate all the proposals he receives to the committee as a whole and the committee will discuss and vote on the mission statement as its next scheduled meeting.
- 6. Mike noted that he had sent out a proposal for a sunset ordinance for St. Marys. Mike explained that the purpose for the proposal arose out of the work done by Elaine shortly after she was elected to council two years ago. Mike noted that the proposal is appropriate for the master plan since it addresses the functioning of city committees that hold hearings, grant licenses or otherwise act on behalf of the city and that a review committee would address issues of city efficiency already noted in the public comments obtained in early 2016. He also noted that such a review process would provide some additional service to the city that could save money as a result of the need to not hire additional paid staff.

Elaine also commented on the need for this type of committee based on her review of the committees. Elaine will provide a copy of her report to the City Council to EPG. Jeff Adams was reluctant to include a proposed ordinance in the plan documents. He observed that a master plan can identify a need and a proposed workplan solution but does not normally go to the detail level of including items like draft ordinances.

There was general agreement that some form of committee oversight was desirable. There was a split of opinion on whether another citizen committee was the best way to provide that oversight. It was the committee's consensus that the portion of the needs and opportunities document dealing with city facilities would be amended to identify the need for a periodic formal review of how each city board or authority was meeting its

- obligations. It was further agreed that the preamble that accompanied the draft ordinance would be integrated into the plan narrative.
- 7. The committee discussed the timetable for the plan documents, their review and submission to the City Council. EPG plans to have a draft of the plan ready for the committee's review by March 17<sup>th</sup>. The committee would have two to three weeks to review it and offer comments. Before sending the plan to the City Council, it will be presented to the Planning Commission at its April meeting. It would thereafter be presented to the City in May. The zoning code would follow a similar route about a month after the master plan.
- 8. EPG had received written comments on the needs and opportunities matrix by the end of January. It was noted that Orange Hall had not been included in the matrix. Jeff and Courtney will insert appropriate language for Orange Hall in the matrix and the master plan. As a result of the Ms. Duncannon's presentation, the matrix and workplan will be revised to include a workplan item that the city should file an application to participate in the GICH.
- 9. The items to be covered at the next meeting will include the goals and policy statements, the mission statement and the final review of the needs and opportunities matrix. It was agreed to change the date of the next meeting from March 2<sup>nd</sup> to Monday, February 27<sup>th</sup> at 6:00 PM at the Senior Center.
- 10. When the floor was opened for public comment, Cheri Richter said that provisions for Orange Hall should be in the master plan.
- 11. Upon motion made, seconded and unanimously passed, the meeting was adjourned at 7:55 PM.